
April 16, 2019 

In Attendance: 

Members Present:  Mayor Janet Winkler, Commissioners:  Larry Chapman, Jonathan Greer, Barry 

Mitchell, Rick Shew, Ann Smith and Bill Warren 

Others Present:  Town Manager, Rebecca Bentley, Chief of Police, Richard Blevins, Assistant Finance 

Officer, Michelle Coffey, Town Planner, Teresa Kinney, Recreation Director, Chuck Raby, Town Clerk, 

Tammy Swanson and Town Attorney, Carroll Tuttle  

Call to Order: 

Mayor Janet Winkler called the April meeting to order, and welcomed the members of the audience to the 

meeting.  Mayor Pro Tem, Bill Warren, then led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance and opening 

prayer.  

Discuss/Adjust Agenda: 

 Janet presented the April agenda and requested the following changes: 

Add:  Item 5a -   Report from Public Works Committee  

Add:  Item 7a – Discuss Continuing Our Contract with Unifour Housing Consortium   

Motion: (Rick Shew/Jonathan Greer) to approve the agenda as amended.  Unanimously approved.  

Approval of Minutes: 

Larry Chapman stated that he had discussed a “typo” in the March 19th minutes with the Town Clerk prior 

to the meeting. 

Motion:  (Larry Chapman/Rick Shew) to approve the minutes, as corrected, for the March 19, 2019 

Regular Meeting, the March 25, 2019 Budget Work Session, and the April 2, 2019 PARTF Public Hearing.  

Unanimously Approved.  

Set Tax Discount for the FY 2019/2020 Tax Year: 

Tammy Swanson stated that each year the Board considers setting a tax discount for the upcoming tax year.  

Tammy explained that tax discounts are not required; however, we have several taxpayers who take 

advantage of the discount, and it is a good way to bring in tax revenue early.  Last year’s discount rate was 

2% for payments received in both July and August.  Tammy stated that since our taxes are typically mailed 

in mid-July, it works better for us to have the discount percentage the same for both July and August.  The 

dollar amount of the discounts given for last year with a 2% discount totaled $14,003 representing 

approximately $700,150 in tax payments or 62% of the total tax levy.                                 

Motion:  (Barry Mitchell/Ann Smith) to set the tax discount rate for the 2019 Tax Year at 2% for payments 

received in both July and August 2019.  Unanimously approved.  

Report from Public Works Committee: 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 2 

Public Works Committee Chairman, Larry Chapman, gave a report from the Committee Meeting that was 

held at 5:30 pm today, just prior to this meeting.  The first item discussed was the street maintenance 

review. Larry stated that the Committee approved the street review process, and the ranking of the streets 

for the repaving schedule, with the paving going as far as the monies allotted would last.  The top streets 

needing to be repaved were Eastview Street, Hickory Street and Elm Avenue, with minor repairs being 

made to other streets as necessary. Larry commented that according to Public Works Director, Norman 

Crump, repaving these three streets would probably take a majority of the regular paving budget allotted 

for paving.   

Larry stated that there is one addition recommended for the paving schedule which is to pave a right-of-

way that is approximately 100 ft. long as an extension of Dogwood Street.  Larry explained that this 

extension would abut the walking trail, and would serve as an ingress/egress point for the trail.  There 

would be a gate at the trail, and staff would have the key for the gate.  The Committee recommended that 

the adjoining property owners of the right-of-way/extension be contacted of the plans for paving by a letter 

from Carroll Tuttle, and that an engineer be hired to design the extension, since there could be drainage 

issues, etc.  

Chuck Raby stated that currently, there is no access to the trail for emergency vehicles should an accident 

happen on the trail.  Also, having a paved access point would make maintaining and clearing the trail much 

easier for the Recreation Department.       

Motion:  (Public Works Committee) Committee Recommendations:  (1) Proceed with paving the streets 

according to the rating system for the streets, with minor repairs being made as necessary to other 

streets.     

(2) Pave the right-of-way access to 

the trail (Dogwood Street 

Extension) as suggested, with the 

adjoining property owners being 

notified of the paving by a letter 

from Carroll Tuttle.  Also an 

engineer will be hired to design 

the new road since the right-of-

way area will need to be 

constructed for proper drainage, 

etc.   Unanimously approved.  

Budget Revisions: 

Rebecca presented the following 

budget revisions. 

 

First Revision:  Insurance 

reimbursement for the 2011 Crown 

Vic that was involved in an 

accident.   

 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 3 

 

 

Second Revision:  Lease 

Agreement for three 2019 

Dodge Chargers – Re-class 

Lease payments from Capital 

Outlay to Principal, Capital 

Lease.  Rebecca explained 

that the auditors had 

recommended a change in 

how we handle these 

vehicles.  Rebecca 

commented that this is really 

just an accounting process 

change in how we account 

for the vehicles.  

 

 

 

 

 

Motion:  (Ann Smith/Barry 

Mitchell) to approve the 

budget amendments as 

presented.  Unanimously 

approved.  

 

Stormwater Agreement with WPCOG: 

Anthony Starr, Executive Director of the WPCOG (COG), addressed the Board to discuss the plans for 

stormwater management.    He stated that he planned to let Alison Adams, Planning Director for the COG, 

explain the program because she will be dealing with the administration of the program.  Anthony 

explained that the EPA has come down hard on the administration of this program.  Lenoir no longer 

wanted to administer the program, so the COG has been contracted to handle the program.  Anthony stated 

that Alison is very familiar with this type of program, which is a good thing since we are having to move 

fast to meet the requirements in a timely manner.  

Alison addressed the Board to explained the program.   She stated that the COG is handling stormwater all 

over the region, but she wanted to review the actual program that has been contracted with the Town.   

Alison stated that the timeframe is going to require a lot of work on the COG’s part.  She stated that 

previously, Lenoir held the permit, and Hudson was a permittee.  The EPA said this arrangement would 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 4 

not work.  All of the towns would need to be permitted.  Alison commented that once the COG gets 

approval from the State, a Stormwater Management Plan would be officially written.  The deadline is July 

28, and she believes the COG is prepared to meet that goal.   

Alison stated that there are 6 elements to the Plan, and she presented them as follows: 

 

 

 

Alison stated that the COG would be doing the reporting from these 6 elements on behalf of the Town.   

Jonathan asked if they are doing this for all areas of Caldwell County.   

Alison stated that they will be doing stormwater for municipalities in Caldwell County.  Alison added that 

they cover some municipalities in Burke County as well.   



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 5 

Jonathan asked if there will be a full time person hired by the COG for stormwater administration.   

Alison stated that stormwater will be spread among their staff.  Johnny Wear currently does the educational 

outreach for the program.  She discussed the hiring they plan to do to administer this plan.   

Jonathan asked if stormwater administration would be attached to Billy Rickles’ responsibilities.   

Alison stated that they would be hiring another Code Enforcement Officer.  She commented that Billy 

would be looking after some of the elements of stormwater, but not the entire program.    

Anthony stated that they do plan to hire 2 additional employees to help with the administration of the 

stormwater program.   

Janet commented that there is money attached to the administration of the stormwater program, and as 

with our zoning enforcement, the COG would like to have a 2-year contract in place for stormwater.   Janet 

added that the Town has no choice but to have a stormwater program in place.  

Barry asked about the cost of the stormwater program.   

Alison stated that the cost for one year is $16,866, which covers the 6 elements.  She stated that they are not 

charging for the Stormwater Ordinance.  

Larry asked if we have an incident involving stormwater, would the COG accompany us in detecting the 

problem. 

Alison stated that they would be accompanying us in doing whatever is needed.  The cost associated with 

the testing will be the responsibility of the individual in violation of the regulations.  

Anthony stated that most of the time, the COG will try to get state agencies to handle the big problems.   

Rebecca commented that we have street drains that have been in place for over 100 years.  She asked if these 

drains have to be mapped, and if so, is that part of the COG contract.  

Alison stated that the drains do have to be mapped, and the COG is looking at ways this needs to be 

handled.  She suggested that GIS may have access to information that can help with mapping the street 

drains.  

Rebecca commented that she is sure things would pop up along the way that are not covered under the 

contract cost, and would involve additional charges to handle.  

Alison stated that at this point, this program is new and will take adjustments along the way.  

Rebecca stated that the Town has a garage area, and we are fortunate that we do not have a garage area 

where oil is changed in the vehicles, etc.  However, our entire garage area is not under roof, and vehicles 

cannot be parked under the garage.  She stated that it is her understanding from the recent stormwater 

meetings she has attended that garage areas are to be underroof.  She asked if the Town’s heavy equipment 

would need to be kept underroof. 

Alison stated that she is not sure at this point.  She commented that as the stormwater plan is developed, 

we will learn a lot more about what is required.  

Anthony stated that since the State is shifting stormwater around, there will be more changes, with more 

rounds of requirements along the way. 

Rebecca stated that we are fortunate to have the early college and the technical college students in Hudson 

who could be involved with community service projects and monitoring our creeks.  She added that we 

have been doing educational programs on a small scale with school age children.  Rebecca commented that 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 6 

having the community involved with the stormwater program is important, and she voiced concerns that 

Billy may be overloaded with keeping up with both code enforcement and stormwater.   

Anthony stated that the COG contracts are being priced to hire additional staff.  

Rebecca asked if stormwater enforcement would come before July.   

Anthony stated that stormwater enforcement would not come before July. 

Rebecca stated that we are a small town with a small budget, and we cannot do a lot with stormwater.  She 

stated that she wants the Board to understand that the regulation of stormwater is a federal mandate that is 

going to cost us money, and now is the time we may need to think about charging a stormwater fee. 

Alison stated she used to work in Huntersville, N.C., and they have a utility fee.  These fees are used to 

repair infrastructure and repairs to streams.  She added that there is also a fee that could be set for 

developers who would be creating the issues.   

Rebecca commented that for most of the stormwater violations, the fee cannot be tied to a developer.   

Janet stated that since this is so new, we will all be learning as we go.  She commented that we have to 

remember this is mandated.  She said that what she is hearing from the COG is that we are all in a time 

crunch, and something has to be done now.  

Barry stated that we have a lot of roads in the county that are state roads, and he asked if this will be shared 

with the state.  

Anthony stated that there is a difference, such as curb and guttering, etc.  He stated that the NCDOT and 

the State have responsibilities; however, these responsibilities are not applicable to rural areas – only 

municipalities.   

Rebecca asked if this also includes the ETJ area.  

Anthony stated that it does cover the ETJ area; however, the mapping will not include the ETJ.   

Larry asked if any COG area municipalities are charging a stormwater fee. 

Anthony stated that he is not aware of any at this time.  

Alison stated that it is her understanding that Dallas, N.C. located outside of Gastonia, charges a 

stormwater fee.   

Janet stated again that because of time constraints, we need to vote on the stormwater agreement with the 

COG.  

Jonathan asked if Carroll had reviewed the agreement.  

Carroll stated that he had briefly reviewed the agreement.   

Motion:  (Rick Shew/Larry Chapman) to approve the two-year agreement with the WPCOG for 

administration of the stormwater program.  Unanimously approved.   

(A copy of the agreement is attached.) 

 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 7 

 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 8 

 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 9 

 

 

Discuss Continuing Our Contract with Unifour Housing Consortium:   

Janet stated that Rick Oxford, Unifour Home Program Director for the WPCOG, has asked if the Town 

would like to continue to participate in the Housing Consortium program.  Janet stated that there is no fee 

connected with this service that COG offers, and they do a wonderful job.   

Rebecca stated that the Consortium receives funding from the US Department of Housing and Urban 

Development under the HOME Program to address housing needs of low income families.  She commented 

that the Town has been a member of the Consortium HOME Program since its inception in 1995.   

Rebecca stated that local governments hold memberships in the Consortium through a 3-year agreement, 

and it is time to renew the agreement.  

Motion: (Ann Smith/Bill Warren) to continue the Town’s membership in the Unifour Consortium 

HOME Program for the next three years (2020-2022).  Unanimously approved.  

Resolution to Adopt Revised 10-Year System Wide Parks & Recreation Plan: 

Erin Schotte, Community & Economic Development Administrator for the WPCOG, discussed the 10-Year 

System Wide Parks and Recreation Plan.  She stated that she along with Chuck and Rebecca sat down with 

our PARTF representative, and discussed suggestions on how the grant application could be improved. 

Erin stated that last year, we had high quality public input, but the number of surveys fell short.  Erin 

commented that Chuck did a great job in getting more surveys, which is now at 63.  There were 

approximately 300 surveys handed out, and our response rate was 20%.  Erin commented that there was 

not a lot of change in the outcome of the additional surveys.  

Erin stated that there is a lot of community support for the facility, but she felt like we really hadn’t told the 

story.  With this in mind, she included history of the Park with this application.  



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 10 

Erin stated that the last change was to Appendix B.  She stated that she changed this section out, and 

replaced it with a report on the services that will be provided by the Park that will not be duplicated, 

specifically not at Optimist Park.   

Motion:  (Jonathan Greer/Rick Shew) to approve the resolution adopting the revised Comprehensive 

Parks & Recreation Plan and the Site Specific Master Plan for Optimist Park as presented.  Unanimously 

approved.  

The resolution was adopted as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discuss Idea for Fundraiser – Hudson Recreation Walk of Fame: 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 11 

Chuck stated that we are obviously going to have to do fundraising for the Optimist Park project, and he 

had an idea for a fundraiser.  He suggested that the Town start a Hudson Walk of Fame at Optimist Park 

and explained that the Walk would be made with bricks bearing the names of people who participated in 

sports at the Park.   Chuck commented that it would be done much like the memorial walk in Windmill 

Park and at the Veterans Memorial at HUB Station.   Chuck stated that he planned to charge $100 per brick, 

and he already has several people interested in purchasing bricks. 

Chuck stated that Mike Norris at McGill & Associates is working on a rendering of the Walk which he plans 

to construct near the step area at the Park.  He stated that the Walk would be done after the Park 

renovations are complete. 

Chuck commented that people have asked if more than one person’s name can be put on a brick.  Chuck 

stated  that he planned to limit selling the bricks to a 3-year window, so he preferred that there be only one 

name per brick.   

Motion:  (Rick Shew/Larry Chapman) to give permission to proceed with the Walk of Fame Fundraiser.  

Unanimously approved.  

Informal Comment & Public Comment: 

 Town Receives CAFR - Janet stated that we again have received the CAFR for the 26th consecutive 

year. Janet commended the Staff for continuing to do a good job looking after the money! 

 March of Cross – Good Friday, April 19th  – Rain or Shine.  Janet asked for a “phone tree” message 

to be sent out to remind everyone of the upcoming events. 

 Redwood Park Easter Egg Hunt  - Police Dept. Child Safety Seat Drive/Drug Take Back Program 

–Saturday, April 20th at 10:00 a.m. 

 Cruise-In – Friday, May 3rd 5:00 pm -8:00 pm 

 NC Butterfly Festival  - May 4th  9am – 4pm  Rain or Shine   Entertainment  - Johnny White and the 

Elite Band 6:00 pm until 8:00 pm.    If it rains, the concert will be moved from Windmill Park to HUB 

Station.  Bill Warren commented that the Town Staff has been very involved with organizing the 

Festival this year, and he thanked everyone for their help. 

 Dinner Theater Comments  - Keith compiled a report from the comment cards.  He included the 

“good” and the “bad.” 

 Budget Work Session – Tuesday, April 23rd at 6:00 pm at Town Hall  

 Wal-Mart Grant awarded to HCDA - used to purchase tents for the Festival.  Rebecca stated that the 

tents were personalized for HCDA, and because of the grant, were absolutely free to HCDA 

 Wal-Mart Grant awarded to Police Department – Richard stated that the Police Department 

received a $2,000 grant from Wal-Mart, which allowed him to replaced 5 body cameras and 

purchase a tent.  Richard stated that he was very grateful for the support Wal-Mart shows the 

community by awarding these grants.    

 The Passing of 2 Hudson Icons:  Bob Keen & Rick McRary– Rebecca stated that we recently lost 

Bob Keen, a former Town Commissioner, and Rick McRary, a member of our Bike and Ped. 

Committee.   Rebecca commented that both of these men were very involved in the Hudson 

community, and she asked the we remember their families in our thoughts and prayers.  

 

 



April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

Page 12 

Adjournment: 

Motion: (Larry Chapman/Bill Warren) to adjourn the meeting.  Unanimously approved.  

 

 

 

       _____________________________________ 

       Tamra T. Swanson, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  


